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PROGRAM PROCESS

What is an eligible specialty crop?
Specialty crops are defined in law as “fruits and vegetables, tree nuts, dried fruits and horticulture and nursery crops, including floriculture.” You can access information concerning the definition of specialty crops and a listing of eligible specialty crops on USDA’s website or by clicking: Definition of Specialty Crops.

How does the program work?

Interested applicants must submit a proposal to TDA following the Specialty Crop Block Grant Program guidelines provided. Proposals will be reviewed and preliminarily selected for inclusion in TDA’s state plan to USDA - AMS. The State Plan is submitted to USDA for review and final approval to award funds to selected projects.  For information on the background of the program, state allocations or other USDA administration questions, please see USDA’s Specialty Crop website.  

How do I apply?

Interested persons can visit TDA’s website and download a copy of the application, the Request for Proposals (RFP), and other program information.  Completed applications should be submitted to the Texas Department of Agriculture. Applications may be mailed, emailed or faxed by the deadline published in the official RFP. 

What happens after I apply?

An administrative review will occur to determine whether the applicant is responsive to the requirements set forth in the RFP and guidance documents. Proposal will then be reviewed and evaluated by a panel chosen by the Commissioner of Agriculture. Proposals are ranked and an internal committee selects high scoring projects to be included in TDA’s State Plan. The State Plan is submitted to USDA-AMS for review and approval.  Once USDA approves the State Plan, TDA will issue grant agreements to the selected applicants.
What happens if I am preliminarily selected for funding? 

If your proposal is preliminarily selected for funding, TDA staff will work with you ensure your proposal meets the guidelines set forth by USDA. The staff will review the proposals and recommend revisions or ask the applicant to revise/clarify particular sections. 
What is a state plan?

The state plan is a compilation of all proposal selected by TDA to be funded by the Specialty Crop Block Grant Program. 

What happens during USDA’s review?

USDA reviews all proposals provided in the state plan to ensure all required information has been provided, that the proposal meets the intent of the program, and the each project has a clear measurable objective. USDA may ask for revisions to project proposals if information is missing or unclear.  

Is there a minimum or maximum numbers of pages allowed?

The Project Proposal is limited to 6 pages. This does NOT include the Application Coversheet, or other allowable attachments such as letters of support. The proposal must be written in TIMES NEW ROMAN size 12 font, with 1-inch margins. 

Do I need to use all the forms TDA has provided or referred to in the Request for Proposals?

Yes, the Application (Form ER-121) and the Project Narrative and Budget Summary Form (ER-121A) are all required forms that must be submitted.

When will funds be available?

TDA does not have a specific date from USDA, but we are anticipating being able to award funds in October.
Does the proposal need to follow exactly the outline specified in the Application Guidelines, or are those categories just suggestions?

Proposals need to contain the exact categories specified in the RFP, Application and Guidance documents. TDA’s application to USDA is required to contain these specific categories for each project funded through the SCBGP. Additional documents such as letters of commitment from project partners may also be attached.
PROJECT NARRATIVE

Can a project that promotes Texas specialty crop products include ineligible products or commodities?

Yes, projects may also benefit ineligible products or commodities; however, applicants must describe, in detail, what steps and measures will be taken to ensure that all SCBGP funding will be used to solely enhance the competitiveness of eligible Texas specialty crops. 

What is the difference between an output and an outcome in the Expected Measurable Outcomes Section?

Outputs referrers to the number or tangible results you would gain from the completion of the project such as the number of participants at a conference, the number of marketing advertisements published, etc. Outcomes are what you expect to gain as a result of the project and are of direct benefit to the specialty crop stakeholder listed in the potential impact section, such as percent increase of knowledge gained from educational materials presented at a conference or increase in sales due to the advertisements. 
What does Performance Monitoring in the Expected Measurable Outcomes Section mean? 

The Performance Monitoring Plan describes the means by which an applicant will plan for and evaluate the success of implementing project activities.

What should be included in the Work Plan?

The workplan should be an outline that provides details about key activities that will be accomplished. Be sure to include performance monitoring and data collection in the workplan.  

Can the outcome of a research project be beyond the timeline of the grant?

Yes. TDA understands that for many of projects, it may take longer than one year to reach measurable outcomes. If proposing such a project, communicate what the anticipated outcomes will be by the end of the grant and a timeline for the expected end results of the project beyond the end of the grant. It will also be important to communicate HOW the project will be able to continue without the SCBGP funds at the end of the granting period.

What dates should be included in the timeline?

Although many activities will be conducted throughout the life of the project, others may be scheduled for a shorter timeframe such 1-3 months. Be sure to breakout key activities and allocate sufficient time to each. 

Can a project begin at anytime as long as it is within the grant period? 

Yes, a project can begin at anytime during the grant period, but must not begin before October 1, 2012 or end after September 30, 2013.

Are Resumes/Curriculum Vitaes required?

No, Resumes/Curriculum Vitaes do not need to be included with the application package. If selected for funding, TDA may ask for this information. 

Is there a limit to the number of Letters of Support (LOS) that can be attached? Who should write Letters of Support? To whom and at what address should Letters of Support be addressed? 

Letters of Support (LOS) are required as part of the application.  There is not a limit to the number of LOS that can be attached. LOS should come from businesses, organizations or associations that believe the proposed project will be beneficial to the specialty crop industry.  LOS should be addressed and sent to the Grant Proposal applicant to be included as part of their application submitted to TDA. 

Is the number of Letters of Support part of the Grant Proposal scoring criteria? 

No, the number of Letters of Support is not part of the Grant Proposal scoring criteria; however, the level of support the project demonstrates with a letter of support is considered part of the scoring criteria.
BUDGET NARRATIVE

What is considered special purpose equipment under the SCBGP? 

Special purpose equipment under the SCBGP is equipment that is used for research, scientific, or other technical activities. Special purpose equipment for technical activities includes equipment that is specific and necessary to the project. 

How detailed does the Contractual section of the Budget Narrative need to be? 

For each Contractor or Consultant, a short description of the type of services and general categories of items such as professional services, travel, indirect etc. must be detailed as indicated on the Budget Narrative Template.

Should Matching Funds and/or In-Kind contributions be included on the Grant Proposal Budget or Budget Narrative? 

Matching funds and/or In-Kind contributions are not a requirement of the Texas Specialty Crop Block Grant proposal, however, if you choose to include Matching Funds and/or In-Kind contributions, only activities supported by the SCBGP grant funds should be included in the Budget and Budget Narrative.

Can I contact TDA for further clarification?

Yes, TDA’s Grants office can provide assistance in the preparation of proposal budgets and the completion of agency forms. Please contact Ms. Mindy Fryer at 512-463-6908 for assistance or by email at Grants@TexasAgriculture.gov.

Todd Staples, Commissioner









